
 
 
 

Mr S Hearse 
Chief Executive 
Torridge District Council 

Riverbank House 
Bideford 

Devon 
EX39 2QG 
 

DX 53606 BIDEFORD 
Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700 

 

 

 

Date: 11 January 2022 

 

MEETING OF EXTERNAL OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY  
COMMITTEE 

On: Wednesday 19 January 2022 At: 6.00 pm 

Venue: Caddsdown Business Support Centre, Bideford, EX39 3BE 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

Temporary measures during the Coronavirus Pandemic: 

Members of the public attending meetings or taking part in the public forum are advised that 
all External Overview & Scrutiny meetings taking place during the Covid-19 Pandemic will 

be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the YouTube channel - 
https://tinyurl.com/TorridgeYouTube 

 

To: Councillor J Manley (Chair) 
Councillor C Cottle-Hunkin (Vice-Chair) 
Councillors: S Harding, C Hawkins, S Langford, C Leather, S Newton, 

P Pennington and R Wiseman 
 

Non elected Members: Mr L Bach and K Baker 

 
Members are requested to turn off their mobile phones for the duration of the meeting 

 

AGENDA 
PART I - (OPEN SESSION) 

1.   Apologies For Absence  

 To receive apologies for absence from the meeting. 

 

2.   Minutes (Pages 3 - 15) 

 Confirmation of the Minutes of meetings held on Monday 8th November and Thursday 

25th November 2021.  
 

3.   Public Participation  

 15 minute period for public contributions 

 



 
 

 

4.   Action List (Pages 16 - 18) 

5.   Declaration Of Interests  

 Members with interests should refer to the agenda item and describe the nature of 

their interest when the item is considered.  
 

6.   Agreement Of Agenda Items Part I and II  

7.   Urgent Matters Brought Forward With the Permission Of The Chair  

8.   Citizens Advice  

 An opportunity to hear from the Chief Executive Officer for Citizens Advice Torridge, 
North Mid & West Devon.  

 

9.   Consideration Of The Forward Plan (Pages 19 - 32) 

 Meeting Organiser: Democratic Services 

 

 Centre for Public Scrutiny – website            http://www.cfps.org.uk/ 

 

 

http://www.cfps.org.uk/


1 
 

 
 

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

EXTERNAL OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY MEETING 
 

Brynsworthy Environmental Centre - Brynsworthy 
 

Monday, 8 November 2021 - 10.00 am 

 
PRESENT Councillor J Manley (Chair, Torridge District Council) 

Councillor Tucker (Chair, North Devon District Council)  
 

 

 Representing Torridge District Council (TDC) 

Councillors S Langford, C Leather, S Newton and P Pennington 

 
Representing North Devon District Council (NDDC) 

Councillors Biederman, Cann, Gubb, Hunt, D. Spear, l. Spear 

 
 

ALSO PRESENT J Williams - Public Health & Housing Manager (TDC) 
 K Hewlett - Electoral and Democratic Services Officer 

(TDC) 

 N Rowlands - Service Lead – Housing Vulnerable 
Persons and Community Safety (NDDC) 

 T Birtwisle - Service Lead -  Community Safety 
Partnership Officer / Harm Risk (NDDC) 

 A Dunbrook - Corporate and Community Services Officer 

(NDDC) 
 Superintendent 

Davies 

- Devon & Cornwall Police 

 E Butler-Jones - Devon & Cornwall Police 
 

93.    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Cottle-Hunkin and 
Hawkins, Independent Members Louis Bach and Kenton Baker and the Head of 
Legal & Governance (Monitoring Officer).  

 
RESOLVED: That in accordance with Procedure Rule A4.3 of the Torridge 

District Council Constitution, the meeting was declared inquorate and all 
business was adjourned. Members in attendance remained to receive an update 
from Superintendent Davies. 

 
94.    MINUTES  

 

The meeting was not quorate, so the minutes for the meeting held on 
Wednesday 01 September 2021 will be reviewed at the next meeting of the 

External Overview & Scrutiny Committee. 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



2 
 

 
 

95.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 

There was no public participation.  
 

96.    ACTION LIST  
 

The meeting was not quorate so the action plan will be reviewed at the next 

meeting of the External Overview & Scrutiny Committee.   
 

97.    DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 

Members were reminded that declarations of interest should be made as and 

when the specific agenda item to which they related was under discussion. 
 

98.    AGREEMENT OF AGENDA ITEMS PART I AND II  
 

There were no Part II items.  

 
99.    URGENT MATTERS BROUGHT FORWARD WITH THE PERMISSION OF 

THE CHAIR  
 

There were no urgent items.  

 
100.    UPDATE ON THE NORTH DEVON AND TORRIDGE COMMUNITY SAFETY 

PARTNERSHIP  
 

Superintendent Toby Davies gave Members an update on the North Devon and 

Torridge Community Safety Partnership over the last year.  Unlike Cornwall, 
which was a Unitary Council, Devon had both district and county level local 

government administrations.  The Community Safety Partnership was a district 
level partnership as well as a County level safety partnership.  This could prove 
challenging when bringing together different organisations.   

 
Over the last year the partnership had focussed on the following priorities: 

   

 Protecting the vulnerable 

 Sexual violence and domestic abuse 

 Substance misuse 

 Emerging threats  

 
Superintendent Davies explained to members that the approach of the 

partnership had always been preventative, high intensity, and trauma informed.  
The partnership was unique in that it had very rural areas, urban and coastal, so 
it was important that focus must not just be given to the urban areas.   

 
There was still a prevalence of organised crime groups in the area with County 

lines and drug activities still a big area of concern, but it was explained this 
would be a common theme for most authorities nationally as well.  Bitesize 
training has provided front line workers with knowledge to spot signs of illicit 

Page 4



3 
 

 
 

behaviour, and this had resulted in an increase in intelligence from the 
community. 

 
Another priority area that was concentrated on was sexual violence and 

domestic abuse.  It was stated that this was the most likely way a female could 
come to harm, usually within the home or from someone known to them.  
Superintendent Davies highlighted the work of the sub-group dedicated to 

victims of domestic and sexual abuse. 
 

It was explained that road safety was of considerable importance, especially in 
light of the loss of three lives within the space of eight days in the Torridge area 
recently.  It was stated that the cause of most of the road traffic accidents over 

the year could be attributed to locals in the area.  Superintendent Davies 
highlighted the road safety initiative Operation Snap, whereby members of the 

public could upload their dash-cam footage to the police via their website - this 
has proven to be very successful.  It was confirmed there would be two speed 
detection officers in vans dedicated to the area and mostly located on the link 

road.  The Community Speed Watch initiative was highlighted and it was 
explained how this helped the police in local and rural areas.  If communities 

were experiencing speeding issues advice and help could be given to set up a 
local Speed Watch group.   
 

The final area that had a big impact on town centres was Anti-Social Behaviour. 
Superintendent Davies highlighted the Home Office had launched ‘Street Safe’ 

which allowed the public to anonymously log areas of concerns over personal 
safety in the town.  It was explained how Anti-social Behaviour (ASB) was a big 
area of concern for everyone and wasn’t just for the partnership to resolve. The 

ASB steering group was highlighted – their role was to identify and target 
individuals, who were street based, with the aim of helping them regain a role in 

society.  The use of Public Spaces Protection Orders was also highlighted as a 
useful tool in tackling ASB in public places and in Torridge was being widely 
extended.  The use of Covid Marshalls patrolling the streets was another 

example that gave a sense of safety for visitors to the towns. 
 

Superintendent Davies explained he was a Senior Response Officer for a group 
called High Flow working in collaboration with One Northern Devon.  13 
individuals who were putting the most demand on services had a team around 

them helping to turn their lives around.  A High Intensity Pilot was a collaboration 
between the Devon Partnership Trust, Police and other partners providing 10 

individuals with mental health issues a team dedicated to their needs.   
 
It was confirmed the partnership had strong links with the Exmoor Rural Alliance 

and the Rural Affairs team.  The Office for the Police Crime Commissioner 
(OPCC) were collaborating with a Police Community Support Officer (PCSO) at 

Ilfracombe Harbour, this would be the host location but would cover coastal 
communities across the area. 
 

Via a virtual link, Janet Williams, Public Health and Housing Manager (TDC) 
then gave Members an update of the work carried out in the Torridge area of the 

partnership as follows: 

Page 5



4 
 

 
 

 

 The Public Space Protection Order (PSPO) for Bideford town was 

reviewed and renewed in 2021 and as part of this work a consultation 
was carried out with the Police, residents and businesses in the town. 

 An awareness raising campaign was carried out advising individuals and 
businesses of the new provisions under the renewed PSPO and regular 

joint patrols involving the police and council enforcement team reiterating 
the new provisions 

 An anti-social behaviour steering group was set up with North Devon to 

look at hotspots to look at and understand issues and provide resources 
to tackle problems where necessary 

 This steering group was open to Councillors as well as businesses to give 
their feedback and concerns on issues affecting them - an invitation was 
extended to members. 

 
Via a virtual link, Natasha Rowland, Service Lead, Housing Equality, NDC gave 

Members an update on the work carried out in North Devon as follows: 
 

 The Public Space Protection Orders in Barnstaple and Ilfracombe had 

been reviewed and renewed during 2021.  

 Barnstaple was currently experiencing high anti-social behaviour issues 

and alongside the ASB steering group an action plan was being drafted to 
address the problems currently being experienced.   

 It was explained this would include a zero-tolerance approach to some of 
the behaviours that were taking place. The plan showed recognition that 

there were issues but also balanced with the desire to understand what 
was triggering the behaviours in certain individuals and how to address 
those issues 

 
Via virtual link, Tim Birtwisle, Service Lead - Community Safety Partnership 

Officer/Harm Risk, NDC, provided Members with an update on the Trauma 
Informed approach as follows: 
 

 Over the last year the trauma informed approach had helped individuals 
turn their lives around 

 In 2020 a Trauma Informed Conference was held and it had been hoped 
to run more events. However, the Covid pandemic meant these meetings 
had to move online 

 A training organisation had been co-opted providing training online to 
more than 200 delegates from various backgrounds.  These included 

statutory partners of the CSP as well as individuals from agencies 
involved in health and social care 

 The feedback from the training sessions had been very positive, with 
delegates saying they had been able to put into practice what they had 
learned on the course 

 
Emma Butler-Jones, Devon and Cornwall Police gave Members an update on 

road safety as follows: 
 

Page 6



5 
 

 
 

 The Forum that met to discuss road safety issues ceased at the 
beginning of lockdown due to the Covid pandemic.  

 The work dealing with road safety had continued with the input from local 
communities and by liaising with Highways and local authorities. 

 The community speed watch project was being used successfully as an 
approach to dealing with speeding issues in rural towns and villages. 

 Anyone interested in the issue of road safety was invited to get in touch. 
 

Emma Butler-Jones went on to give Members an update on the Sexual violence 
and Domestic Abuse Forum as follows: 
 

 The Forum continued to meet online during lock down and were able to 
introduce measures to help victims of abuse such as the Safe Spaces 

campaign and the Ask for Angela scheme 

 Bitesize sessions on spotting abuse in the workplace had been run for 
businesses 

 The focus of the Forum was early intervention and prevention and the 
awareness of violence against women and girls was being taken into 

schools 

 As the biggest risk behind closed doors the Forum would still treat 

domestic abuse as a top priority 
 
The Superintendent summed up for members and highlighted the importance of 

partner engagement in the issues.  It was explained that the area remains one of 
the safest places to live in terms of the levels of crime, and whilst crime will 

always be an issue crime rates compared to the rest of the country remained 
low.  
 

Finally, it was confirmed that Safe Devon Partnership would be restructuring and 
that the OPCC’s office planned to change the way funding would be distributed 

– it was stated that future projects would need to be specific and show where 
money was going to be spent. 
 

The following responses were given to questions asked: 
 

 The Ask for Angela scheme was nationally recognised and licensed 
premises in the area were all aware of how to support someone.  

 It was confirmed that attendance at CSP was intermittent from 

representatives in health, the probation service and the fire service.  It 
was confirmed that not all partners were statutory, some were volunteers.  

It was explained that Covid had affected the ability for some partners to 
attend. 

 It was explained that the issues with 101 and not being able to get 
through on the phone was not covered by CSP.  However, the historical 
issues of retaining call handlers was highlighted to members along with 

the variety of ways people can report so that 101 can be freed up for 
those who need it.  

 It was explained that if Police statistics were not showing incidents of 
criminal activity, this would suggest that reporting of those incidents was 

Page 7



6 
 

 
 

not being made through the correct channels and so not getting to the 
police. It was confirmed that anything reported was logged and there 

would be a record. 

 In relation to ASB Youth Engagement Officers who visited schools in 

Torridge were highlighted and it was confirmed they had received funding 
to put outreach workers on the street educating the young people. 

 It was explained how the increase in Public Offence numbers could be 

seen as a positive, as it showed that Police Officers were being more pro-
active and dealing with situations before they escalated to more serious 

offences.  

 It was confirmed that the Road Safety Sub-Group welcomed attendance 

from Councillors and this would be a good way to get involved in manging 
the response.  

 The Street Safe app was a Home Office initiative and anonymous. It was 

not the same as reporting to the Police.  Superintendent Davies 
confirmed that the CSP promoted Street Safe on their social media 

platforms, as well as Devon Live whose audience numbers were 
significant. 

 It was confirmed that there are Bitesize sessions covering Safety Online, 

and these could be delivered at parish level to reach the elderly.   

 There is a dedicated Rural Affairs team dealing with poaching of livestock 

from agricultural land. 
 

101.    CONSIDERATION OF THE FORWARD PLAN  
 

The meeting was not quorate so the forward plan will be reviewed at the next 

meeting of the External Overview & Scrutiny Committee.   
 

 
 
The meeting commenced at 10.00 am and closed at 11.34 am 

 
 

Chair:  Date:  
 
 

Page 8



1 
 

 
 

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

EXTERNAL OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY MEETING 
 

Caddsdown Business Support Centre, Bideford, EX39 3BE 
 

Thursday, 25 November 2021 - 2.00 pm 

 
PRESENT Councillor J Manley (Chair) 

 
 Councillor C Cottle-Hunkin (Vice-Chair) 

 

 Councillors C Hawkins, S Langford, C Leather and P Pennington 
 

  Councillors C Hodson, N Laws 
 
Non Elected Members L Bach, K Baker 

 
ALSO PRESENT S Dorey - Head of Legal & Governance (Monitoring 

Officer) 
 A Avery - Community Engagement Officer 
 T Vanstone - Senior Electoral & Democratic Services 

Officer 
 K Hewlett - Electoral and Democratic Services Officer 

 
 

102.    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Newton, Councillor 

Harding and Janet Williams (Public Health & Housing Manager).  
 

103.    MINUTES  
 

Chair ran through the minutes with members page by page.  

 
It was proposed by Councillor Langford, seconded by Councillor Pennington and 
– 

 
Resolved: 

 
That the minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 01 September 2021 be 
agreed and signed as a correct record. 

 
(Vote: For - 7, Abstentions  - 1)  

 
104.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  

 

There were no public contributions.  
 

Page 9



2 
 

 
 

105.    ACTION LIST  
 

Chair ran through the action list and provided members with an update on 
progress.  

 
The action list was duly noted.  
 

 
106.    DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  

 

Members were reminded that declarations of interest should be made as and 
when the specific agenda item to which they related was under discussion. 

 
107.    AGREEMENT OF AGENDA ITEMS PART I AND II  

 

There were no Part II items.  
 

108.    URGENT MATTERS BROUGHT FORWARD WITH THE PERMISSION OF 
THE CHAIR  
 

Chair raised the public consultation launched by Devon & Somerset Fire Brigade 
in relation to their draft Community Risk Management Plan 2022-2027 - 

Community Risk Management Plan 2022-2027 (draft) | Devon and Somerset 
Fire and Rescue Service (dsfire.gov.uk).   

 
It was explained the consultation will be via an online survey and members were 
urged to complete this individually once they had the opportunity to review the 

draft risk management plan.    
https://wh.snapsurveys.com/s.asp?k=163481748317  

 
Members noted that the document referred to the closure of some stations and 
though Appledore was not mentioned in the document, there was a reference to 

efficiencies and effectiveness of locations.  It was agreed that a letter would be 
drafted from the Committee asking whether the future of Appledore Fire Station 

was being safeguarded and there are no future plans to close the station.  
 
Councillor Cottle-Hunkin addressed the committee and asked for clarity 

regarding the process for registering assets of community value, she queried if 
this was an issue for Internal Overview & Scrutiny or External Overview & 

Scrutiny.   
 
The Head of Legal and Governance & Lead Monitoring Officer clarified that the 

committees were not involved in the process. She explained that if someone 
wanted to make a registration this would need to go to Tom Phillips in the 

Property Team and the team would then make an assessment. It was confirmed 
that the process is currently being updated by Legal Services and the Property 
Team.  

 
It was questioned if members were involved in the decision-making process.  

The Head of Legal and Governance & Lead Monitoring Officer confirmed that 

Page 10

https://www.dsfire.gov.uk/community-risk-plan
https://www.dsfire.gov.uk/community-risk-plan
https://wh.snapsurveys.com/s.asp?k=163481748317


3 
 

 
 

the process was set out in legislation and this legislation had to be used to make 
any decisions. It was clarified that Lead Members and Ward Members would be 

informed of any relevant decision.  
 

It was queried why there is no right of appeal and the Head of Legal and 
Governance & Lead Monitoring Officer confirmed that this was also set out 
within the legislation.   

 
109.    PLAY STRATEGY UPDATE  

 

Adrian Avery, Community Engagement Officer, attended the meeting to provide 
members with an update on the Play Strategy. He explained his role and 

members introduced themselves.   
 

The Community Engagement Officer highlighted the Play Strategy report written 
by the Head of Communities & Place and provided an update for members. It 
was confirmed that since the play strategy was approved in the summer a 

working group had been established.  Members include the Contract Manager 
and members of the Estate Team, who complete regular site visits and work 

with the Maintenance Team.  The group will be meeting every two months to 
discuss the play areas, look at their condition and plan future work. 
 

It was confirmed that the Operational Services Manager would be attending the 
next working group and that the group would therefore be linking in closely with 

them. Currently the working groups are looking at the conditions survey from 
2019, which will be updated by the team before 1st April when maintenance and 
grounds services return in house.   

 
The Community Engagement Officer confirmed that since May improvements 

have been made to some of the play areas to bring them up to a higher standard 
- meaning that progress is being made on the aspiration to have all rated a good 
standard by 2023.   

 
As part of this work it was stated that a review of play spaces added by housing 

developers would take place, this will consider if any of these smaller spaces 
should be social spaces.  
 

The Community Engagement Officer recognised there is public interest in play 
areas and confirmed that information will be made available on the website 

shortly.  
 
Members were asked if they had any questions.  

 
There was a query in relation to the rating of good for the Village Green at 

Westward Ho! Concerns were raised regarding the flooring of the play area, as 
well as rusty and sharp surfaces. It was stated that these concerns have been 
reported but were yet to be addressed.  The Community Engagement Officer 

confirmed that any reports regarding play areas should be passed onto the 
working group to consider, and the next meeting was due in December and 

agreed to update members on the concerns raised regarding Village Green.  

Page 11



4 
 

 
 

 
During discussions it was identified that the Village Green park should be listed 

as Westward Ho!  As well Hanson Park and Benson Drive, which are both in 
Northam. The Community Engagement Officer agreed to amend the report.  

 
Members queried whether there was still a plan to pass on play areas to Parish 
Councils. The Community Engagement Officer provided members with an 

update and confirmed that discussions had already taken place with some 
Parish Councils, but explained that in some cases there work was needed to 

bring these play areas up to a better standard first.  
 
There was a query in relation to Geneva Court handover and the need for 

improvement. The Community Engagement Officer confirmed that this wasn’t a 
definitive decision and the aim was to complete the improvement work first.  

 
The discussion then moved to Pathfields and Calvesford Close. The Community 
Engagement Officer explained the issues in relation to Pathfields and the legal 

issues at Calvesford were explained to members.   
 

The Head of Legal and Governance & Monitoring Officer explained Benson 
Drive had been picked up in an audit that is taking place as part of work to bring 
Grounds Maintenance in house.  It appears this area is still under the 

Developers ownership and investigations are ongoing.  
 

Members asked whether the money to complete repairs have been easily 
accessible. Following the decision of Full Council to not have a specific pot for 
play areas. The Community Engagement Officer stated that the working group 

hadn’t experienced any delay in accessing funds for maintenance.  
 

The Community Engagement Officer was asked for an update on the Cliveden 
Road area. It was confirmed that the equipment was removed due to being in 
poor condition and the area was considered an open recreational space for the 

time being.   
 

Maintenance of Old Town Park was mentioned with specific mention of a broken 
gate. The Community Engagement Officer provided members with an update on 
some of the work that’s already started at the park and the 2 gated areas. It was 

requested that residents be advised of the works.  
 

An update on Victoria Park was requested and the Community Engagement 
Lead confirmed that a Community Group has been set up. The group have 
started to apply for funding and a community page has been set up, with 

aspirations of a spring deadline.  
 

It was confirmed that a ROSPA (Royal Society for the Prevention of Accidents) 
inspection will be taking place at Victoria Park play areas next Monday. 
 

Members queried whether there was a price for what needs to be maintained 
and what needs to be replaced as part of this work to improve standards.  The 

Community Engagement Lead confirmed he was working with the Estate Team 

Page 12



5 
 

 
 

and the detail regarding items that are required would be part of a conditions 
survey, which will be costed by 1st April.   He explained the main issue, 

alongside equipment,  currently is safety surfacing, as this was an expense 
across most of the play areas.   

 
Members queried what the assessment process was for rating the play areas; 
who makes the assessment and how this can be challenged. The Community 

Engagement Lead confirmed he completed assessments with the Estate Team 
using information received from Tivoli as a base line, and the Maintenance 

Team complete work – the team are ROSPA Health & Safety trained.   
 
It was confirmed that a meeting is planned with ROSPA on Monday where they 

were hoping for further guidance, but the team were also considering asking 
ROSPA to complete annual checks on all sites.  

 
The Community Engagement Lead agreed to share the report from ROSPA on 
Victoria Park with members.  

 
Councillor Pennington proposed a recommendation that a member or 

independent person be involved in this assessment process.  There was no 
seconder and following further discussion and clarification regarding the 
assessment process at TDC and the proposed  role of ROSPA Councillor 

Pennington withdrew his motion.  
 

The Head of Legal & Governance & Monitoring Officer suggested to members 
that the Operational Services Manager attend a Committee meeting to higlight 
the work taking place in advance of the Grounds Maintenance contract returning 

in house. It was explained that Tivoli are currenty responsible for the play area 
maintenance alongside other specialist work and the Operational Services 

Manager is completing an assessment prior to handover.   
 
Members referred to the decision of Community & Resources to allocate a 

surplus from 2019-20 to a Leisure Fund and the subsequent decision at Full 
Council regarding the allocation of a maintenance budget.  Members wished to 

know if they were able to access the leisure fund for play areas under  ‘leisure 
facilites’ and they also asked if the current spend on maintenance was matching 
the figures provided by Tivoli report for a 6 year period.  

 
The Head of Legal and Governance & Monitoring Officer confirmed that there is 

a maintenance budget, but she explained that previous discussions at Full 
Council were around ring-fencing part of this for play areas and explained why 
the Finance Manager had advised against this. The aim of the play strategy was 

to use this budget in the most effective way possible.  
 

The Head of Legal and Governance & Monitoring Officer confirmed that a report 
would be going to Full Council on 13th December regarding Leisure.  She 
highlighted that the budget setting process for 2022-23 is starting and there is a 

Capital PID day on 7th December, which would be opportunity for members to 
feed into discussions.  

 

Page 13



6 
 

 
 

Following a further discussion on maintenance budget spends the Head of Legal 
and Governance & Monitoring Officer explained how the day-to-day repairs and 

fixing of broken / dangerous equipment would be paid for through the 
maintenance budget, but there was an acceptance that not all equipment could 

be replaced.  This was why a Play Strategy had been developed, so that work 
could be prioritised, discussions arranged regarding future plans and aspirations 
for the parks that TDC keep.   

 
Members asked for clarity on what a Social Space was and the Community 

Engagement Lead confirmed it was generally a low maintenance area with 
benches or seating available for the public.  
 

There was positive feedback regarding the tables with games in Bideford Park 
organised by Bideford Town Council and supported by Torridge District Council.  

There was a request for this to be replicated.   
 
Members queried if any support could be offered to the Community Groups 

applying for funding for Victoria Park. It was agreed that if the Community Group 
require a letter of support then the Committee could do this, or contact the Ward 

Member to request their support.  Chair offered her support to the community 
Engagement Lead in relation to funding application processes also.  
 

Members asked, if the ROSPA report on Bidefort came back with potential work, 
could this be taken to the Capital PID day as a request for funding. The Head of 

Legal and Governance & Monitoring Officer confirmed this would be the date to 
feed in any requests for any possible priorities for the next financial year.  
 

Members requested more detail regarding the replacement or removal of 
equipment within the play areas, alongside their rating. The Community 

Engagement Lead explained that this information would be within the condition 
survey, which they aim to provide by the 1st April.  It was requested that the 
condition survey be shared in time for budget setting process.  

 
Members sought clarity regarding the process for repairing play equipment and 

whether, if equipment was too broken to fix, this would be replaced.   
 
The Head of Legal and Governance & Monitoring Officer reiterated the aim of 

the play strategy was to look at the areas TDC are responsible for and complete 
assessments regarding work that is needed  and what can be done within the 

budget.  
 

110.    CONSIDERATION OF THE FORWARD PLAN  
 

Chair explained to members that Citizen’s Advice were unavailable for today’s 

meeting.  This item will be moved to the January meeting as Citizen’s Advice are 
available. This will move the Joint Meeting on Health to the 9th March.   
 

Members raised concerns regarding the lack of dental availability in the area.  It 
was requested that External invite a person who can provide an overview of the 

situation in the area. Chair suggested this may be covered at the Joint Meeting 

Page 14



7 
 

 
 

with Health in March. Member’s asked that when setting up the meeting it is 
requested that one of the speaker is able to answer questions on dentistry / 

dental provision.    
 

It was suggested that the meeting is April is also a joint meeting with North 
Devon and South West Water and the Environment Agency are invited to 
discuss drainage and raw sewage.  

 
 

 
The meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and closed at 3.13 pm 
 

 
Chair:  Date:  

 
 

Page 15



ACTION LIST 

Overview & Scrutiny (External) Committee – 25 November 2021 

Minut

e 
No. 

Raised by 

Action Allocated To Progress Update Status 

79. Chair To forward on details of relevant 

funding streams to Joni from the 
Together Project.  

Chair  

No funding has been identified 

as yet and Chair remains in 
contact with Joni.  

Ongoing 

89. Committee 

Members 

Recommendations to C&R a 

request is taken to Full Council 
Budget Setting, and that core 
funding is allocated from the 2022-

23 budget to fund a Pattern 
Changing Course for Torridge.   

Dem Services  
Request added to agenda for 
the budget meeting of C&R.  

Ongoing 

91. Councillor 

Pennington 

That a joint meeting be arranged for 
North Devon and Torridge to 

explore the impact of the proposed 
amalgamation of the Health Boards 

for Devon and Exeter and North 
Devon.  It was requested that Health 
commissioners and providers are 

invited to the meeting.  

Chair & Dem 

Services 

Date proposed for 9th Feb and 

NDDC Councillors have been 
invited via their Dem Services 
Team. Health representatives 

are aware of the brief & have 
also requested that members 

are updated on the Our Future 
Hospital Programme.  Health 
reps attending:  

 
Zahara Hyde, Programme 

Director, Our Future Hospital 
programme  
 

Katherine Allen, Director of 

Strategy  

9th Feb 

P
age 16

A
genda Item

 4



 
Chris Tidman, Deputy Chief 
Executive Officer   

 
Jessica Newton / Susan Mills, 

Communications and 
Engagement  
 

91. Committee 
Members 

That the joint meeting on the 
Forward Plan regarding ‘Housing 
Environment / Biosphere / Drainage 

and Sewage – joint meeting with 
North Devon Council’ be explored if 

the Community Safety Partnership 
isn’t possible in October, or moved 
to a new date on the Forward Plan.  

Chair & Dem 
Services 

Discussions are underway with 

NDDC – they have requested 
more detail regarding what the 

meeting will be covering.   

Ongoing 

 Councillor Hodson Request that External O&S write a 

letter to Devon & Somerset Fire 
Brigade in relation to the Risk 

consultation. The letter should query 
what the long term plans are in 
relation to Appledore Fire Station 

and whether there remain any plans 
to moth ball the service.   

Chair & Dem 
Services 

Letter sent to the consultation 
lead for Devon and Somerset 

Fire and Rescue on 16/12/21 – 
requested a response before 

the close of consultation.  

Complete 

 Chair  

Update regarding the concerns 
raised about Village Green play 

area in Westward Ho! 

Community 

Project Officer 

Discussed at December 

working group.  The 
Maintenance Team have 
identified work that needs to be 

completed to fencing and safety 
surfacing and these are now 

being addressed.    

Complete 

  Request that the ROSPA reports on Community Democratic Services emailed Complete 

P
age 17



 

Members Victoria Park are shared with 
External O&S members once 
available.  

Project Officer out the reports for Adrian on 3rd 
December.  

 Head of Legal & 
Governance & 
Monitoring Officer 

Extend invitation to Operational 
Services Manager to highlight work 
on Grounds Maintenance in house – 

raised as part of discussions on play 
strategy and budgets.  

Dem Services   

P
age 18



 EXTERNAL OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – FORWARD PLAN 2021/2022 
 

Cycle 1 
9 June 2021 

2pm 

Cycle 2 
21 July 2021 

6.00pm 

Cycle 3 
1 Sept. 2021 

2pm 

Cycle 4 
8 Nov 2021 

10am  

(re-scheduled) 
 

Cycle 5 
25 Nov 2021 

2pm 

Cycle 6 
19 Jan 2022 

6pm 

Cycle 7 
9 March 2022 

Brought forward to 

9 February 2022 
2pm 

Cycle 8 
27 April 2022 

6pm 

 

 

 

- Mental health post 
Covid.  –Together 

(Drug/alcohol service) 

 
 

 

Mental Health post 
Covid.  Leesar project 
– NDADA and SPLITZ, 

domestic and sexual 
violence services. 

 

 
Joint Community 

Safety Partnership 

Update.  
 

 

 
Play Strategy Update  

 

Citizen’s Advice – 
money and debt 

management advice 

 

 

Joint meeting with 
North Devon – Invite 
commissioners and 

providers from Health 
to discuss the 

amalgamation of the 
local Health Boards 

and the impact of this 

merger on local 
services. 

 

Joint meeting with 
North Devon – Invite 
South West Water / 

Environment agency to 
discuss Environment / 

Biosphere / Drainage 
and Sewage- joint 
meeting with North 

Devon Council 
 

 
  

 

   
 

 
UPCOMING ITEMS FOR FORWARD PLAN  

Prosperous and Sustainable Economy 

 
Sectors 

Agriculture & Fisheries – NFU / support organisations  
Agriculture Bill – invite MP 
The economy (national / local) 

Education – to be broken down into smaller segments 
Employment (NEETS, Petroc) / Working with young people / apprenticeships 

Housing (first time home buyers, planning policy, social housing, homelessness) 
Organisations 
Bideford Chamber of Commerce 

North Devon+/Leader5 
Infrastructure 

Empty buildings 
Industrial Units and local economy 
Transport (buses, Link Road) 

Stronger, Safer, Healthier Communities  

 
Concerns 

Ambulance cover, hospital beds, healthcare providers 
Ambulance response times in relation to downgrading to Category 2 of serious conditions such as 
stroke and chest pain (from Bideford / Northam AAG) 

First Responder response times and triage. Fire & Rescue, Ambulance and Air Ambulance 
Amalgamation of Northern Devon Healthcare Trust and Royal Devon & Exeter Hospital Trust and the 

transformation programme.  
Fuel poverty 
Pharmacies 

Resourcing of community policing including PCSOs 
Staffing at North Devon Hospital 

Social housing landlords 
Leisure Services 
Play Strategy Update 

Multi Use Games Areas and Larger Play Spaces – joint report with North Devon 

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 9



Organisations 
Burton Art Gallery 
Healthwatch 

Leisure Services (1610):  Joint T&F update and separate scrutiny by External  
Suzanne Tracey – North Devon Healthcare Trust 

TTVS 

Quality Environment 
 

Concerns 
Housing developments and water run off 
Overflow issues at Appledore / Westward Ho 

Surface water draining / Flooding 
Water Quality – Sewerage 

Grounds Maintenance Contract 
Organisations 
AONB / Biosphere 

Environment Agency and Devon County Council (surface water draining / flooding) 
Southwest Water (overflow issues and Appledore / Westward Ho)  

Effective and Customer Focused Council  
 

Mr Topham:  Liaison with external bodies / Partner Evaluation Form for 12 month review. 
 

  

 

Health, well-being and community safety organisations 

Office of the Police and Crime Commisioner 

Devon safeguarding adults board 
Devon children’s and family board 
North Devon Biosphere 

Active Devon 
South West Water 

Western Power Distribution 
Surestart 
BBfA (better business for all) 

South West Growth Hub 
South West Armed Forces Covenant Partnership Board 

TTVS 
RSPCA 
 

Trading standards 

Environment Agency 
Devon Anti Slavery Partnership/ Unseen 
One Northern Devon 

Devon Somerset Fire and Rescue 
Local resilience forum 

Lendology (formally Wessex Loans) 
361 Energy 
Integr8 

Recovery Devon 
Space 

Encompass South West 
Westward Housing 
Livewest Housing 

Bideford Street Pastors 
Devon Libraries unlimited 

 

 

P
age 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



 

22 December 2021 
 
Steve Hearse 
Chief Executive 
Torridge District Council 
steve.hearse@torridge.gov.uk 

 
 
 
Dear Steve 

We thought you would be interested to hear about progress with the Devon Nature 

Recovery Network (NRN) map and toolkit.   

We’re delighted to say that a critical milestone was reached on 30th November when 

the first iteration was presented.  The results of our work were well received, and 

we’re very pleased that around 90 people attended from the great majority of local 

authorities, statutory agencies, protected landscapes and environmental NGOs in 

Devon.  We were able to display a series of maps that show: - 

• The natural habitat that currently exist in Devon, both protected sites (e.g. 

SSSI) and unprotected ones 

• The potential for restoring or recreating specific natural habitat types (e.g. 

wetland, neutral meadow) across the county 

• Some initial work showing clusters of habitat and giving an indication of 

possible target areas for restoration and recreation efforts  

This is a really significant step forward and builds on the lessons learned from similar 

maps created elsewhere in the UK.  As well as creating the single most 

comprehensive and up to date analysis of wildlife habitat in Devon, the maps will be 

a vitally important decision-making tool as we plan to achieve the 30% coverage for 

nature set out in the Environment Act 2021.  The maps will form a central pillar in the 

Local Nature Recovery Strategy, and they will also play a crucial role in our efforts to 

tackle climate change and reach net zero emissions by 2050 or earlier. 

There is much work still to be done.  Existing data will continue to be refined, and we 

intend to add further layers that will include: - 

• Connectivity modelling, so we can refine the ability of the maps to identify 

strategic areas for targeting policy and funding interventions on the ground  

• Coverage of the marine areas around Devon, where half of our wildlife resides 

• Carbon sequestration potential of existing and possible new areas of natural 

habitat 

The NRN mapping and toolkit has been funded by the majority of local authorities, 

statutory agencies and protected landscapes in Devon.  Torridge District Council 

suggested they would like to pledge towards this work earlier in the year.  We are 

Page 31

mailto:steve.hearse@torridge.gov.uk


 

very much hoping that you will now be in a position to make funds available.  If there 

is anything you need form us before you can do this please let us know.   

The NRN map and toolkit will be made available online via Devon County Council’s 

Environment Viewer very shortly.  We will continue to update and improve it.  

The map and toolkit will be shown at the Devon local authority CEO (Team Devon) 

meeting on 2nd February as part of a presentation and discussion with Natural 

England and the Devon LNP around Local Nature Recovery Strategies.   

We would be delighted to meet up with you and present the NRN map and toolkit if 
that would be helpful, in which case please don’t hesitate to get in touch with Ed Parr 
Ferris (Conservation Manager, Devon Wildlife Trust). 
eparrferris@devonwildlifetrust.org 
 

 
Yours sincerely 
 

      
Professor Michael Winter  Harry Barton 
Chair of Natural Devon  CEO of Devon Wildlife Trust and Vice Chair of  
     Natural Devon 
 

 

 

Page 32

mailto:eparrferris@devonwildlifetrust.org

	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Draft Minutes 25-11-21

	4 Action List
	9 Consideration Of The Forward Plan
	Letter from Mid Devon
	Letter from Natural Devon - Nature recovery Network (NRN) map


